HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT OF TOWN LITOMERICE - SUMMARY

The oldest records of the settlement of Litom&Fice situated opposite the mouth
of the river Ohfe into the Elbe dates back to the Neolithic period and they are
about 6,000 years old. Archaeological excavations have confirmed that many
prehistoric civilisations used to live in this region, one of the most fertile regions of
Bohemia.

There are preofs Slavs lived here in the 8th century. Not later than in the 10th
century a hill-fort on the Dém Hill became their centre and it belonged to the most
important centres of the castle centred administration system in the early Czech
state from the point of view of power and culture. An original of the oldest pre-
served document written on our territory comes from this centre. It is so called
Foundation Deed of Litomé&¥ice Chapter (app. 1057) and it proves besides other
things the existence of the Church of St. Stephen. It is supposed that at the acropo-
. lis of the hill-fort spread out on 6 ha there used to stand also the Church of St.
George. It is proved in the 11th and 12th century there was a great number of seft-
lements of different importance in the neighbourhood of this Pfemyslid centre and
they formed two circles. In the first circle up to 500 m far from the centre there
were 6 or 7 settlements, in the second circle 500 - 1500 m far there were about
13 or 15 settlements. Craft and agriculture was intensive in some of them. Personal
names were Czech.

At the wrn of the 12th and 13th century a community of craftsmen and mer-
chants settled between today’s Dlouhé and Jesuit Street and the edge of the Elbe
terrace became the most important, Settlement located there was called ,.Novus
Mons super Aiblam" (1219). On the south-west there was a court of a nobleman
Hroznata. It was donated to the monastery in Tephd before 1219 which gave it to
the Order of German Knights (1233).

A medieval town as an institution arose next to the above mentioned settlement
before 1228 partially thanks te merchants from Saxony and we know from docu-
ments where some of them came from, Since the 30s of the 13ih century Italians
had been members of convent of Minorites. The Jewish community is supposed to
settle down 300 m far from it. However the majority of population was Czech and
it came to the town in connection with the concentration of settlement. Indirectly it
results from the extinction of settlements in the neighbourhood, the fact that less
people lived in the hill-fort and records do not say anything about craftsmen in the
neighbouring villages. Litom&fice received Magdeburg Right very soon (confir-
med in 1262) and in the 14th century it became the town to which other towns from
almost the whale northem pant of the country used to appeal. Litoméfice also beca-
me the centre of the region.

The original town (app. 6 -10 ha) was situated just around an extraordinary
large square (1.7 ha). The whole area was fortified by stone walls, eastern side
was closed by the Minorites’ Church of St. James and Church of All Saints who-
se presbyteries went beyond the walls, Fertification continued along the valley of
Pokraticky Brook towards Dominican Church of St. Michael. The Church of $t,
Marry of Knights Hospitallers with the Red Star (1257) was situated outside the
walls on the south-east. Knights Hospitallers with the Red Star replaced the Order
of the German Knights. The Church of the St. Lawrence was located in the east.
The Church of St. Stephan’s was situated also outside the walls in the older villa-
ge Zasada creating nowadays one of the suburbs. It became the ownership of
St. Adalbert’s Chapter of Litoméfice. The Church of St. George and Church
of St. Wenceslas used to stand on the D6m Hill. An atiempt to found so called
New Town (the name appeared in documents from 1346) near the Church of St.
Wenceslas was made between 1253 and 1262.

Probably between 1351 and 1359 the municipal area doubled, The space of 2Gha
was closed by new bulwark walls. The whole area including the settlement on the
Dom Hill and suburbs was about 50 ha. From the very beginning the development
of Litom&Fice was influenced by trade on the Elbe and the town had almost the
monopoly codified by the stable right which stipulated that merchants going through
the town had been obliged to offer their goods for sale to local people.

Reform ideas of Hussite revolution left imprint also in this region. However 24
Utraquists were arrested at Christmas in 1419 and on May 30, 1420 they were
drowned in the Elbe. In February 1421 burghers attacked the provost’s residence
of Zdislav of Zvifetice who used to be Master John Huss friend. Antihussite ideas
were spread by several hundreds priests who had fled from locations seized by

Utraquists. Catholic Church tried to convert Litomfice into a supporting point as
the Emperor Zikmund used to stay repeatedly there in 1420, In May 1421 the town
was besieged by Jan Zizka’s troops. The town defended itself against the attack
but negetiations started and on May 29, 1421 Litoméfice joint Prague Union of
Hussite Towns. Soon after that ZiZka had a castle called Chalice built 9 km far
from here on the north-east.

By virtue of Hussite wars the town of Litoméfice had representatives in the
Diet. It kept important role also ia the period of economic and political emancipa-
tion of Czech towns in the 16th century. The decanal Church of All Saints served
to the Utraquist majority of burghers. The Chapter of the Church of St. Stephen
became the centre of Catholic minority. The vast majority of inhabitants was
Czech, At the beginning of the 16th century in the period of disputes of Estates the
municipal fortification was enlarged by outer wall with semi-circle gun bastions.
Preserved Gradual of Litoméfice (app. 1517) and some preserved buildings are
evidences of the cultural development of the town. When the Renaissance style
came to Bohemia, Litoméfice was one of the first towns which used this style for
the construction of the town hall (1537-153%).

The overall development was slowed down by the Thirty Years’s War at the
beginning of which about 500 burghers had to leave for exile for religious reasons.
One of them was also M. Pavel Strinsky whose book ,.Respublica Bojema™ pub-
lished for the first time in 1634 in Leyden in the Netherlands became well-known
abroad among all educated people. The town considered to be an important food
stuff base was twice attacked during the war by the Saxons and the Swedes and
the troops occupied the town several times. 60% of burghers’ houses and buildings
in the suburbs was destroyed.

However Litoméfice which was still the royal regional centre retained its basic
economic importance. The religious importance of the town had even in-creased.
Houses for Jesuits and Capuchins were constructed in the period of recatholisati-
on. In 1648 it was decided Litomé&fice would become the seat of the new Czech
Bishopric established by the Pope’s Bull on July 3, 1655, There were also changes
in the ethnic composition of inhabitants. The number of German speaking people
grew, The town hall documents were written in Czech till 1738. The town changed
in the second half of the 17th and the first half of the 18th centuries. New Baroque
architecture won over older styles, especially Gothic one. Many buildings of both
sacred and secular character are evidences of talent of Italian architects who sett-
led down in Bohemia. The most well-known of them were Giulio Broggio (+ 1703)
and his son Octavio (1670-1742).

In the second balf of the 18th century Litoméfice became an important centre
of Enlightenment. Distinguished representatives of the National Revival used to visit
the Episcopal library in which there were many bocks donated by E. A. of
Valdstejn (1759-1789). At the very beginning of the 19th century Josef Jungmann
who lived in the town between 1799 and 1815 started teaching Czech language and
literature at the grammar school (1800) and at the Episcopal seminar (1806) for the
first time in the country. Also Karel Hynek Micha, a well-known poet used to live
here (1836). .

At that time the town started expanding. The town gates were gradually torn
down {1824 -1863). As soon as the walls in today’s Lidick4 Street were broken
through, a new suburb arose along the road to Pokratice. A sewerage (1856},
savings bank (1858) and Labskozdmecky pivovar/brewery (1860) were built.
Construction of gasworks providing for public lighting (1872) was also very
important. Even more important was construction of the railway (1874). After
1862 Litométice lost its status of the regional centre and life in the town was com-
plicated because of national conflicts. The Czech patriotic ¢lub ,Beseda® was
formed in 1862. It cost energy and efforts of many people to found the first Czech
minority school in 1880, The representatives of the town concerned that Czech
culture would continue spreading out so they purposefully prevented foundation
of industrial companies.

Animportant step in the development of the town was construction of the street Na
valech/On Ramparts conceived according to Ringstrasse in Vienna as a main town
boulevard. The following public buildings were constructed between the hospital
{from 1845) and the suburb Zasada - a secondary technical school {18635), gram-
mar school (1878), post office (1897), printing house (1897}, teacher training

institute (1898), institute for deaf and dumb people (1858, 1899), building for aut-
horities of justice (1908) and banks (1913). Further development of the town was
stimulated by the construction of the railway connecting Teplice and Liberec (1896
or 1900). A municipal park (1892) was founded below it. A restaurant with atower
for tourists was built on the Mostnd hora/llill (1910). A residential area with an
evangelic church (1902), school for boys (1906), gymnasium {1911} and a cinema
(1913) was founded at its foot at the beginning of the 20th century. Art Nouveau
style became dominant in architecture in 1903, Construction of the hospital (1875),
water system (1903), new bridge over the Elbe (1910) and electricity (1913) was
benefictal for the whole town.

The ground plan of the historic centre of the town changed. A narrow street was
built between the square and new girls® school (1883) which connected the square
with the suburb Dubina (Mdcha’s stairs), Zitkova Street (18%0) arose between
Dominikansk street and Na valech. The Church of St. George (1876) was torn down
on the Dom Hill. A new provost’s residence (1886) and Cathedral tower (1889) were
built there and cannons’ houses were reconstructed (after 1900).

In the second half of the 19th century Litom&Fice was well-known as the town of
schools (grammar school, secondary technical school, theelogy training institution,
teacher training institute, agriculture school). Due to construction of landwehr
(1888) and artillery (1912) barracks and transfer of the Command of the 9th Army
cofps to the town (1908), Litométice obtained also military character. After the
foundation of Czechoslovakia so called Deutschbhmen Province (October 29,
1918}, the Command should have become its central military body. However
Terezin troops consisted mostly of Czechs seized the town without fighting
{December 11, 1918). '

In the period between the wars political life of the town was influenced by impor-
tant status of German agrarians (Bund der Landwirte). Their representative Franz
Kfepek, defender of the co-operation with Czechs, became the mayor of the town
(1934-1936). Henlein’s movement got stronger also in this town.

After the Munich dictate Litoméfice was detached off from the rest of
Czechoslovakia and it was occupied by Wehmmacht (October 10, 1938). At first
new border crossed the bridge over the Elbe but on November 24, 1938 it was
moved to the crossroad on the road to Terezin. On March 15, 1939 it became the
border with so called Protectorate. An underground factory Richard was built
west of the town in 1944 and many political prisoners and prisoners of war died
there.

The Sovict troops came to the town on May 10, 1945 and two days before the-
ir arrival the National Committee had taken over the administration of the town on
behalf of Czechoslovakia. Immediately after the end of the war in 1945 -1946
German inhabitants were transferred. New people settled here quite soon and in
1950 the town had 14,035 inkabitants. However the pre-war number of people
{18 498) was reached as late as in the 70s.

Reconstruction focused first of all on the construction of new houses on vacant
sites which remained here after the bombardment on May 9, 1945. In order to
preserve the historic centre with the status of the municipal reservation of histo-
rical monuments {1950) the railway was transferred and the by-pass was con-
structed (1954-58). The first housing estate Kocanda (1967-69) was built
north-east of the bistoric centre. The next one called ,.Cihelna"/Brick-field aro-
se on the former brick field in the west of the town (1972-76). Housing estate cal-
led ,.Svomost*/Union was finished on the left bank of Pokratice brook in 1979,
Al that time the construction of the 4th housing estate called ,,Dru¥ba*/Friendship
started (1985) Housing estate , Stfed*/Centre (1988) replaced older blocks of
houses in the suburb Z4sada. In the upper part of Pekratice the last one was com-
pleted in 1991.

LitoméFice is still the centre of one of the most fertile regions in the Czech
Republic. Since 1969 the national exhibition ,,Garden of Bohemia™ has taken pla-
ce there, It is also the seat of some important institutions like the State Regional
Archives (1949} in which historic documents from all over the North Bohemia
are kept, North Bohemian Gallery (1956) which owns collections of arts from
this part of the country, In 1995 the Gallery and Museum of Dioccese of
Litoméfice was opened. They document on the symbolic level the role of the
town it had in the past.

HISTORISCHE ENTWICKLUNG DER STADT LITOMERICE - RESUMEE

Die dltesten Belege fiir eine Besiedelung der gegeniiber der Mundung der
Eger in die Elbe gelegenen Stadt Litoméfice (Leitmeritz) stammen aus dem
Neolithikum und sind etwa 6 000 Jahre alt, Durch archiiologische Ausgrabungen
wurden die Spuren einer ganzen Reihe urzeitlicher Kulturen bloBgelegt, die
einander hier, in einer der fruchtbarsten Landschaften Bohmens, im Laufe der
Jahrhunderte ablosten.

Slawische Siedlungen sind seit dem 8. Jh. n. Chr. nachgewiesen. Spiitestens im
10. Jh. entwickelte sich zu ihrem Kemstiick der Burgwall auf dem Domhiigel, der
zu den wichtigsten Zentren der Burgverwaltung des frithen bhmischen Staates
im machtpolitischen und kulturellen Sinn gehtirte. Von dort stamumt das Original
des altesten auf unserem Territorium verfaBiten und erhaltenen Dokumentes, der
sog. Griindungsurkunde des Kollegiatkapitels (etwa 1057) u.a. mit dem
Nachweis der Existenz einer St.-Stephanskirche. In der Akropolis des Burgwalls,
dessen Gesamtausdehnung 6 ha betrug, stand wahrscheinlich schon damals die
St.-Georgskirche. In der Umgebung dieser Pfemyslidenkastellanei ist fiir das 11.
und 12. Jh. eine groflere Zahl verschiedenen wichtiger Siedlungen belegt, die
zwei Bereiche bildeten. In einer Entfernung bis zu 500 m standen 6 bis 7
Siedlungen, die duBere Zone in einer Spannbreite von 500 - 1500 m vom Zentruzm
umfaBite 13 bis 15 Siedlungen. Einige von ihnen waren gemischte Handwerker-
und Agrarsiedlungen. Die nachgewiesenen Personennamen der Einwohner sind
tschechisch.

An der Wende des 12, und 13. Jh, erlangte die Handwerker- und Kaufmanns-
siedlung zwischen der heutigen Langen Gasse und der Jesuitengasse und der
Kante der Eibeterrasse die grobte Bedeutung. Hierher wird die Siedlung namens
WNovus Mons super Albiam® lokalisiert {1219). Am siidwestlichen héheren Rand
stand der Hof des Adeligen Hroznata; er gelangte durch Schenkung vor dem
J. 1219 an das Kloster in Tepla (Tepl), von dem ihin dann der Deutsche Ritterorden
erwarb.

Die mittealterliche Stadt im institutiorellen Simm entstand dancben vor dem J. 1228.
An ihren Anfinge beteiligten sich Kaufleute aus Sachsen, von denen einige in
Quellen nach ihrem Herkunftsort bezeichnet werden. Seit den dreBiger Jahren des
13. Jh. waren Italiener Mitglieder des dortigen Minoritenkonvents. Etwa 300 m
davon entfernt wird die Siedlung einer Judenkommunitit vorausgesetzt. Ein GroBteil
der Population war jedoch tschechisch und gelangte in die Stadt im Zusammenhang
mit der Besiedlungskenzentration. Dies erbibt sich indirekt aus dem Untergang einer
Reihe von Siedlungen der Zeit vor der Lokation, aus der Entviilkerung des Burgwalls
und auch daraus, daB in den umliegenden Dérfern die Quellen schon keine
Handwerker mehr anfithren. Die Stadt erhielt alsbald das (1262 bestitigte)
Magdeburger Recht und entwickelte sich im 14. Th. zu einem Ort, wohin die Stidte
ungefihr der ganzen nordlichen Hiilfte des Landes ihre Berufungen absandien. Die
Stadt war auch das Zentrum der ganzen Gegend.

In ihrem urspriinglichen Umfang (etwa 6 - 10 ha) beschriinkte sich die Stadt auf
den Raum um dem anBerordentlich groBen Marktplatz (1,7 ha). Sein von steiner-
nen Mauem befestigtes Areal wurde im Osten von der den Minoriten gehdrende
St.-Jakobskirche und der stidtischen Allerheiligenkirche abgegrenzt, Die
Fortifikation nahm ihren Fortgang lings der Kante des Tales von Pokratitzer Bach
hin zu der den Deminikanern gehorenden St.-Michaelskirche. Auferhalb der
Stadtmauem stand im Siidosten die Marienkirche der Kreuzherren mit dem roten
Stern (1257). Ostlich davon stand die St.-Laurentiuskirche. AuBerhalb blieb auch
die St.- Adalbentskirche im Alteren Dorf Zisada, das jetzt eine der Vorstidie bil-
det, Es stand im Eigentum des Kolegiatskapitels bei St.- Stephan, Auf dem
Domhiihel standen auch die St. Georgs- und die St.-Wenzelskirche, bei welch
letzterer in den J, 1253-62 der Versuch unternommen wurde, die Neustadt zu
griinden (Benennung 1346 nachgewiesen).

Wahrscheinlich in den J. 1351-59 das stidtische Areal auf mehr als das
Doppelte ausgeweitet wurde. Der Raum, den die neuen Stadtmauern mit ihren
nach innen offenen prismatischen Basteien einschlossen, maB 20 ha.
Zusammen mit dem Areal auf dem Domhiihel und den Vorstiidten handelte es
sich um eine etwa 50 ha besiedelte Fitiche. Die Aufwirtsentwicklung der Stadt
war von Anbeginn durch die Bindung an den Elbehandel priidestiniert, in der sie
beinahe eine durch das Stapelrecht kodifizierte Monopolstellung erlangte.

Die Reformideen der hussitischen Revolution drangen auch hierher vor, Zu
Weihnachten 1419 wurden jedoch 24 Anhinger des Kelches verhaftet und am
30. 5. 1420 in der Elbe ertrinkt. Im Februar 1421 unternahmen die Biirger
einen Angriff auf die Propstei, deren Repriisentant Zdislav von Zvitetice mit
Mag. Jan Hus befreundet war, Die antihussitischen Stimmungen wurden von
einigen hundert Geistlichen aufgeheizt, die aus den von Utraquisten beherrs-
chenden Orten hierher entflohen waren. Die katholische Partei versuchie die
Stadt zu ihrem Stiitzpunkt zu machen, wo i. J. 1420 Konig Sigismund widerholt
weilte. Im Mai 1421 belagerte das Heer Jan ZiZkas die Stadt, Sein Angriff wur-

de zwar abgeschlagen, aber es kam zu Verhandlungen und am 29. 5. 1421
schloB sich die Stadt dem Prager Verband der hussitischen Stidte an. ZiZkaleg-
te unmittelbar nachher 9 km norddstlich von hier die Burg, symbolisch Kalich
(Kelch) benannt, an.

Im Gefolge der Hussitenkriege gelangte die Stadt an den Landtag. Sie ver-
mochte ihre wichtige Position auch im Zeitraum der wirtschaftlichen und politis-
chen Emanzipation der bfhmischen Stidte im 16. Jh. zu behaupten. Der
utraquistischen Mehrheit von Biirger diente die Dechantei bei Allerheiligenkir-
che, Mittelpunkt der katholischen Minderheit war das Kapitel beim St.-Stephan.
Die erdriickende Mehrheit der Stadbevélkerung bestand aus Tschechen. In der
Zeit der Stiindestreitigkeiten am Beginn des 16. Jh. wurde die Fortifikation durch
eine dufere Zone von Schanzen mit halbrunden Geschiitzbastaien erginzt. Fiir
die kulturelle Aufwirtsentwicklung spricht nicht nur das Leitmeritzer Gradual
(etwa 1517), sondern vor allen die erhaltenen Bauten, Beim Vordringen der
Renaissance nach Béhmen erlangte die Stadt den Primat durch den Bau eines
Rathauses {1537-1539).

Der allseitige Aufschwung wurde durch den DreiBigjahrigen Krieg ge-
hemmt, an dessen Beginn gegen 500 hiesige Biirger aus religitsen Griinden ins
Exil abwandern mubBten. Einer ven ihnen war Mag. Pavel Strinsky, dessen
zum erstenmal i. J. 1634 in der niederlindischen Stadt Leyden erchienenes
Buch ,Respublica Bojema® die gesamte gebildete Welt iber unser Land infor-
mierte. Die als wichtige Proviantbasis angeseheme Stadt wurde in den Zeiten
der Kriege mit den Sachsen und Schweden zweimal erobert und mehrmals
besetzt, Die stidiischen Hijuser und die Gebiiude in den Vorstiidten wurden zu
60 % vernichtet.

Litomé&tice, das auch weiterhin eine knigliche Kreistadt blieb, konnte seine
grundlegende tkonomische Bedeutung aufrechterhalten. In der geistigen Sphiire
wies seine Stellung sogar einen Aufwiirtstrend auf. Bei der Rekatholisterung ent-
standen Ordenshiuser der Jesuiten und Kapuziner und im J. 1648 wurde
beschlossen, hier das durch die papstliche Bulle vom 3. 7. 1655 errichtete neue
béhmische Bistum einzusetzen. Anderungen traten auch im Bereich der
Ethnizitit ein. Die Zahl der deutschsprachigen Bevélkerung stieg lagsam an, aber
die Ratsprotokolle wurden bis zum J. 1738 tschechisch gefithrt, Im Laufe der
zweiten Hilfte des 17, und der ersten Hidlfte des 18. Jh. wandelte sich auch das
Aussehen der Stadt. Auf Kosten dlterer, vormehmlich gothischer Bauten, setzten
sich rasch Formen der Barockarchitektur durch, Zahlreiche Objekte sakralen
wie auch profanen Charakters strahlen bis heute die Invention eingebiirgerter
Baumeister italienischer Herkunft aus, von denen Giulio Broggio (+ 1703) und
sein Sohn Octavio (1670-1742) am bekantesten wurden,

In der zweiten Hillfte des 18, Jh, war die Stadt ein wichtiger Mittelpunkt der
Aufklirung, In die durch Emmanuel Emst von Waldstein (1759 - 89) bedeutsam
bereicherte bischéfliche Bibliothck kamen zum Studium fithrende Vertreter der
tschechischen nationalen Wiederbelebung. Hart an der Schwelle des 19. Jh. eroff-
nete Josef Jungmann, dem die Stadt in den J. 1799-1815 eine Heimat war, am
Gymnasivm (1800) und auch im bischéflichen Seminar (1806) als erster im Lande
den Unterricht in der tschechischen Sprache und Literatur. Auch der Dichter Karel
Hynek Micha erwithlte die Stadt zu seiner Wirkungsstitte (1836).

Bereits damals begann sich die Stadt auszuweiten. Allmihtich wurden die
Stadttore niedergerissen (1824-1863) und nach dem Durchbruch der Schanzen
in der Linie der heutigen Lidicer Gasse (1838) entstand beim Weg nach
Pokratice eine neue Vorstadt. Es kam zum Bau einer Kanalisterung (1856) und
die Silhouette der Stadt wurde durch ElbschloBbrauverei ergiinzt (1860). Wichtig
war auch der Bau eines Gaswerkes, das die dffentliche Beleuchtung ermiig-
lichte {1872). Noch wichtiger war wohl der Anschlul3 an die Eisenbahn (1874).
Nach dem J. 1862 verlor Litomé&Fice die Funktion der Kreisstadt und seine inter-
ne Verhiiltnisse komplizierten sich allmihlich infolge nationaler Zwistigkeiten.
Schon im J. 1862 entstand der tschechische Yerein ,,Beseda®, aber 1880 konnte
nur mit groBen Anstrengungen die erste Minderheitsschule gegriindet werden.
Die Befiirchtungen vor einem weiteren Vordringen des tschechischen
Elementes flihrten dazu, dal die Vertreter der Stadt absichtlich die Griindung
von Industriebetrieben zu verhindemn suchten.

Ein wichtiges urbanistisches Vorhaben war Bau der WallstraBe (Na valech),
die nach der Wiener RingstraBe als wichtigster Boulevard konzipiert worden
war. Zwischen dem Marien-Hospital aus dem J. 1845 und der Vorstadt Zisada
etstanden offentliche Gebiude - die Realschule {1865), das Gymnasium (1878},
die Post {1897), eine Druckerei {1897), die Lehrerbildungsanstalt (1899), das
Taubstummeninstitut (1858, 1899), Objekte der Justizbehdrden (1908) und eine
Bank (1913). Einen Anstofl zur groBeren Ausweitung der Stadt stellte der Ban
einer neuen Eisenbahnlinie vor, die Teplice (Teplitz) mit Liberec (Reichenberg)
verband (1896-1900). Unweit daven entstand der Stadtpark (1892) und auf dem

Mostn4 hora (Briickenberg) ein Ausflugrestaurant mit einem Aussichtsturm
(1910). Am Full der Anh¢he baute man seit dem Beginn des 20. Jh. ein
Villenviertel mit einer evangelischen Kirche {1902), einer Knabenschule
(1906}, einer Turnhalie (1911) und einem Kino (1913). In der Bauweise setzte
sich seit dem J. 1905 der Jugendstill durch. Vorteithaft fiir die ganze Stadt war
der Bau eines Krankenhauses (1875), einer Wasserleitung (1903), einer neuen
Elbebriicke (1910) sowie die Elektrifizierung (1913).

Auch der Grundrill des historischen Stadtkerns erfubr einen Wandel. Vom
Marktplatz wurde hin zur neuen Midchenschule (1883) ein Giiichen durch
Beseitigung vicler kleiner Hiuser angelegt, das die Verbindung mit der Vorstadt
Dubina bildet (heutige Micha-Stiege). Auch zwischen der Dominikanergasse
und der WalstraBe entstand eine weitere Gasse (1890). Auf dem Domhiigel wur-
de die St.-Georgskirche abgerissen (1876); es entstanden die neue Propstei
(1886), der Turm bei der Kathedrale (1889) und die Kanonikerhiuser wurden
umgebaut {1905).

Litoméfice war in der zweiten Hilfte des 19. Jh. als Schulstadt berithmt
(Gymnasium, Realschule, theologische Lehranstalt, Lehrerbildungsanstalt, Land-
wirtschaftsschule). Mit dem Bau der Landwehr- (1888) und der Artilleriekaserne
(1912) und insbesondere mit der Unterbringung der Kommandatur des
9. Armeekorps (1908) nahm die Stadt den Charakter einer Gamisonsstadt an. Als bei
der Entstehung der Tschechoslowakei die sog. Provinz Deutschbhmen ausgerufen
wurde (29, 11, 1918), sollie die Kommandatur ihr militirisches Zentralorgan biklen.
Aber die durchweg aus Tschechen bestehende Garnison aus Terezin
(Theresienstadr) besetzte Leitmeritz kampflos (11, 12, 1918).

In der Zwischenkriegszeit wurde das pelitische Leben der Stadt durch die
wichtige Position der deutschen Agrarier (Bund der Landwirte} beeinflufit. Thr
Reprisentant Franz Kfepek, ein Vorkimpfer fiir eine Zusammenarbeit mit den
Tschechen, war hier Biirgermeister (1933 -1936). Aber auch hier erstarkte als-
bald die Henleinbewegung.

Nach dem Miinchener Abkommen wurde Leitmeritz vom restlichen Teil der
CSR getrennt und von der Wehrmacht besetzt (10, 10. 1938). Die neue Grenze
fithrte zunichst durch die Mitte der Elbebriicke, wurde aber am 24. 11. 1938 hin
zur Stralenkreuzung nach Terezin (Theresienstadt) verlegt. Vom 15. 3. 1939 bil-
dete sie Grenze mit dem sog. Protektorat Béhmen und Mihren. Im J. 1944 wurde
westlich der Stadt die unterirdische Fabrik Richard angelegt, wo zahlreiche poli-

tische Hiftlinge und Kriegsgefangene ums Leben kamen.

Die Verwaltung der Stadt, wohin die Sowjeteinheiten erst am 1. 5. 1945 ein-
langten, hatte bereits zwet Tage vorher namens des tschechoslowakischen Staates
der NationalausschuB iibernommen. Gleich nach Kriegsende erfolgte in den
Jahren 1945-1946 die Aussiedlung der dettschen Beviikerung. Die Einwchnerzahl
erhthte sich zwar spiter rasch durch Nachbesiedlungen, denn bereits im J. 1950
lebten hier 15 126 Personen, aber der Hichststand aus der Zeit vor dem Krieg
{19718 Einwohner) wurde erst im Laufe der siebziger Jahre erreicht.

Die Bautitigkeit verlegte sich zunichst auf die Verbauung der Bauliicken
nach den am 9. Mai durch ein Bombardement vernichteten Hiusern. Fiir die
Aufrechterhaltung des historischen Stadtkerns mit dem Statut einer stidtischen
Denkmalreservation (1950) hatte die Verlegung der EisenbahnstraBe und der
Ban einer Umleitungskommunikation (1954 -58) auBerordentliche Bedeutung.
Als erste der Panellsiedlungen entstand ,.Kocanda™ (1967-69) nordostlich vom
Stadtkem. Als weiteres Baugelinde wurde der Raum der ehemaligen Ziegeleien
am westlichen Stadtrand gewihlt, wo die Siedlung ,,Cihclna® entstand (1972 bis
76}. Eine weitere Siedlung namens ,,Svornost* wurde am linken Ufer des
Pokraticer Baches im J. 1979 fertiggestellt. Zugleich erbffnete man am gege-
niiberliegenden Ufer den Bau der vierten Siedlung namens , Druzba® (1985).
Nach Assanierung der dlteren Hiuserblocke im Raum der Vorstadt Zisada ent-
stand die Siedlung ,,Stfed" (1988). Im J, 1991 erfolgte im oberen Teil von
Pokratice der Bau der letzten Siedlung.

Die Stadt Litomé&fice blieb Mittelpunkt des fruchtbarsten Gebietes in Bshmen.
Seit dem J. 1969 werden hier die gesamtstaatlichen Ausstellungen ,Garten
Bohmens” veranstaltet, Die Stadt ist auch Sitz von Kulturinstitutionen weitgehen-
der Bedeutung, wie es das Staatsarchiv ist (1949), das die historischen Quellen ans
ganz Nordbohmen beinhaltet, wihrend die Sammtungen der Nordb&hmischen
Galerie (1956) einen Einblick in die Vergangenheit und Gegenwart der Kunst die-
ses Landesteiles vermitteln, Im J. 1995 wurde die Galerie und das Museum der
Didzese Litom&fice erdffnet. In der symbolischen Ebene kommen hier die
Traditionen der zentralbedingten Rolle von weitgenhender Bedeutung zum
Ausdruck, die die Stadt in der Vergangenheit reprisentierte,

Jaroslav Macek
Jan Smetana
Jindfich Tomas



